## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 79,542

DCA CASE NO. 91-1

## THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

-VS-

## RAMON ALEN,

**Respondent.** 

ON APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

## **BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

BENNETT H. BRUMMER Public Defender Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida 1351 N.W.12th Street Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 545-3010

**ROBERT KALTER** Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 260711

**Counsel for Respondent** 

#

## INTRODUCTION

In the **trial court**, the appellant, Ramon Alen, was the defendant and the appellee, the **State** of Florida, was the prosecution. In this brief, the parties will be referred to **as** they **stood** in the lower **court**. The symbols "R." and "T." will be **used to** refer to portions of the record an appeal and transcripts of the lower court proceedings, respectively.

The symbol "A" will designate the appendix to this brief. All emphasis is supplied unless the contrary is indicated.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

For the purposes of this jurisdictional brief defendant will accept the state's statement of the case and facts,

## **QUESTION** PRESENTED

WHETHER THE UNANIMOUS EN BANC DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT, WHICH HELD THAT HISPANIC JURORS MAY NOT BE PEREMPTORILY CHALLENGED ON THE BASIS OF THEIR ETHNICITY, IS INCONFLICT WITH STATE v. NEIL, 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984) AND VALLE v. STATE, 474 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1985)

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Third District **Curt** of Appeals, in **a** unanimous en banc decision, held that it is improper for **the State** of Florida **to** exclude Hispanics **frcm** Serving on petit jury when **the** challenge is based solely on the basis of the jurcer's ethnicity. (See Appendix A). The opinion of **the** Third District **Curt** of **Appeals** is not in direct conflict with **either** State *v*. *Neil*, **457** So.2d **481** (Fla. 1984) or *Valle v*. *State*, **474** So.2d **796** (Fla, 1985).

In State v. Neil, supra, this Court specifically stated that its opinion only applied to racially discrimination and that the issue of ethnic discrimination would be decided when the appropriate case arises. This Court never held in Neil, supra, that ethnic discrimination in jury selection is tolerable and therefore, the Third District Court of Appeal's decision does not conflict with Neil, supra.

In *Valle v. State, supra*, the issue before the **court** was whether the geographical group of Latin Americans were wrongfully excluded from grand **jury** service and the petit jury venire. This Court concluded that the geographical group of Latin Americans were not **a** cognizable group for **these** purposes. This **Court** in Valle did not deal with the issue as to whether **a** party can object to the wrongful exclusion of the ethnic group of Hispanics during **a** Neil, supra, inquiry. Therefore, the Third District **Court** of Appeal's decision is not in conflict with this Court's decision in Valle, supra.

Since the Third District **Court** of Appeal's decision does not conflict with **any** case from this **Court** or **any** other district court of appeals, this **Court** should not **accept** jurisdiction of *this* **case**.

-3-

#### ARGUMENT

WHETHER THE UNANIMOUS EN BANC DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT, WHICH HELD THAT HISPANIC JURORS MAY NOT BE PEREMPTORILY CHALLENGED ON THE BASIS OF THEIR ETHNICITY, IS IN CONFLICT WITH STATE v. NEIL, 457 So.2D 481 (Fla. 1984) AND VALLE v. STATE, 474 So.2D 796 (Fla. 1985).

The **State** of Florida argues in it's brief that the unanimous en banc decision of the Third District Court of **Appeal** which holds that it is improper to exclude **an** Hispanic juror based solely on his ethnicity directly and expressly conflicts with this Court's decisions in *State v. Neil, supra* and *Valle v. State, supra*. A review of those two **cases** establish that neither of those **cases** hold that **a** defendant **can** not object to the *state's* exclusion of an Hispanic jury based solely on their ethnic background. Therefore, no conflict exists in this **case**.

In *Neil*, supra, this **Court**, relying on opinions from the California and Massachusetts Supreme Courts, *People v. Wheeler*, 583 **So.2d** 748 (Cal. 1978) and *Commonwealth v. Soares*, 387 N.E.2d 499 (Mass. 1978) held that it was "time in Florida to hold that jurors should be selected on the basis of their individual characteristics and that they should not be subject to being rejected solely because of the color of their skin."

In *Neil*, supra, the prospective jurors whom the **state** sought to exclude from jury service were black. Since the jurors in *Neil*, *supra*, were black the court decided to limit the holding in *Neil*, *supra*, to racial discrimination. The court did **state** however, that "the applicability to other groups will be left open and will be determined as such cases arise."

This Court in State v. Neil, supra, never held that a defendant could not object to the state excluding an Hispanic juror based solely on his ethnic background. Therefore, the Third District Court of Appeal's en *banc* decision which prohibits ethnic discrimination in jury selection does not conflict with this Court's opinion in State v. Neil, supra.

The State of Florida next alleges that the Third District Court of Appeal's decision directly conflicts with this Court's decision in *Valle v. State, supra*. In *Valle, supra*, this Court

dealt with the issue of wrongful exclusion of the geographical group of Latin Americans from the grand jury and the jury venire. The Court concluded that the geographical group of Latin Americans were not a cognizable group for an equal protection analysis. In *Valle*, supra, the court did not deal with the issue as to whether it is improper to exclude an Hispanic from jury duty based on his ethnic background. Therefore, the Third District Court of Appeal's unanimous en *banc* decision which prohibits ethnic discrimination in jury selection is not in conflict with Valle, supra.

**Since** the opinion of the Third District **Court** of Appeal is not in conflict with any decision of this Court or any district court of appeal, this Court should not accept jurisdiction of this **case**.

## CONCLUSION

Since the opinion of the Third District Court of Appeal is not in conflict with any decision of this Court or any district court of appeal, this Court should not accept jurisdiction of this case.