IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

RAMON ALEN,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CHARLES M. FAHLBUSCH
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0191948
Department of Legal Affairs
4000 Hollywood Blvd.,
Suite 505-S
Hollywood, FL 33021
(305) 985-4788

INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the appellee in the court below and the prosecution in the Circuit Court. The Respondent, RAMON ALEN, was the appellant in the District Court and the defendant in the trial court. The parties will be referred to, in this **brief**, as they stand before this court. The symbol "App." will identify the Appendix to the Brief of Petitioner on Jurisdiction. All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent was charged with Robbery in the trial (App. 2). The State, during jury selection, peremptorily challenged two (2) Hispanic jurors. (App. 2). Respondent objected on the grounds that the State was using its challenges in an unconstitutionally discriminatory manner and the trial court inquired. (App. 2-3). The State explained that it struck the first prospective juror because she appeared uninterested and disgusted with the proceedings and that the second challenge was in order to reach another Hispanic juror who was more acceptable (App. 3) and who ultimately served as an alternate. (App. 6). The trial court permitted the challenges, finding that they were not exercised in a discriminatory manner. (App. 3). The Respondent was convicted of the robbery. (App. 3).

The Third District, in its <u>en banc</u> opinion, recognized that this court, in <u>State v. Neil</u>, 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984), ".

. chose to limit the impact of its holding solely to race.,,
." (App. 3). Nevertheless, the district court held, "...
that Hispanics are a cognizable ethnic group within this community for purposes of the application of <u>Neil</u> principles."
(App. 5). The district court, therefore, reversed the defendant's conviction and directed that he be awarded a new trial. (App. 6).

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT, WHICH HELD THAT HISPANIC JURORS MAY NOT BE PEREMPTORILY CHALLENGED ON THE BASIS OF THEIR ETHNICITY, IS IN CONFLICT WITH State v. Neil, 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984) AND Valle v. State, 474 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1985).

- 3 -

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision in this case does expr**ess**ly and directly conflict with the decisions of <u>State v. Neil</u>, 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984) and <u>Valle v. State</u>, 474 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1985).

Neil was specifically limited, by this court, to distinctive racial groups. The district court has now extended it to apply to ethnic groups on the basis of their ethnicity.

<u>Valle</u> held that Latin Americans were not an identifiable group for purposes of equal protection or constitutional due process analysis. This case now holds that Hispanic persons are an identifiable, cognizable group for equal protection and impartial jury purposes under the Florida and United States Constitutions.

Express and direct conflict could hardly be clearer.

ARGUMENT

THE DECIS ON OF THE DISTRICT COURT, WHICH HELD THAT HISPANIC JURORS MAY NOT BE PEREMPTORILY CHALLENGED ON THE BASIS OF THEIR ETHNICITY, IS IN CONFLICT WITH State v. Neil, 455 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984) AND Valle v. State, 474 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1985).

This court, in <u>State v. Neil</u>, **457** So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984), specifically limited the impact of that case to discrimination due to race, a5 follows:

Although specifically dealing with blacks, both Wheeler and Soares speak generally of group bias based on racial, religious, ethnic, sexual or other grounds. Thompson, on the other hand, appears to be limited solely to race, specifically blacks. We choose to limit the impact of this case also and do so to peremptory challenges of distinctive racial groups solely on the basis of race. The applicability to other groups will be left open and will be determined as such cases arise.

Id. at 487.

While the district court recognized that this court chose to limit the impact of its holding solely to race (App. 3), it nevertheless chose to find that, ". . . Hispanics constitute a cognizable group within this community so as to entitle a defendant, pursuant to article I, section 16 of the Florida Constitution, to dispute the state's use of a peremptory challenge against an Hispanic juror when the challenge is alleged to have been made solely on the basis of the juror's ethnicity. . . . " (App. 1-2, 5).

This court limited its decision to distinct racial groups. Neil at 487. The district court has now held that the Neil decision is to be applied to any distinct ethnic group. (App. 1-2, 5, 6). It is respectfully submitted that conflict is established on that basis, alone.

However, the district court went far beyond an analysis based on the right to an impartial jury in the Florida Constitution. They also held, based on (dictain) Hernandez v. New York, U.S., 111 S.Ct. 1364, 114 L.Ed.2d 411 (1991) that, ". , . pursuant to the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution, Hispanic jurors may not peremptorily challenged solely on the basis of their ethnicity." (App. 6).This provides an interesting contrast to the following language from the court's decision in Valle v. State, 474 So. 2d 796 (Fla. 1985); vacated on other grounds, 476 U.S. 1102, 90 L.Ed.2d 353, 106 S.Ct. 1943 (1986); remanded on other grounds, 502 \$0.2d 1225 (Fla. 1987).

> Appellant, by his characterization of himself as a Latin American, has failed to prove that he belongs to an identifiable group. "The first step is to establish that the group is one that a recognizable, distinct singled out for different treatment the laws as written under applied." Id. The term "Latin American" from encompasses people too different countries different and cultural backgrounds and attitudes to constitute a single coqnizable class for equal protection analysis. Accord, United States v. Rodriguez, 588 F.2d 1003 (5th Cir. See also United States v. 1979). Duran de 582F.Supp.Amesquita, 1326 (S.D.Fla.1984) (holding that "hispanics" do not constitute recognizable а class). (emphasis added).

Id. at 800.

Thus, while this court holds that "Latin Americans" are not a cognizable **class** for equal protection purposes, the district court holds that, "Hispanic", "Spanish" and "Latin" (which the plurality opinion makes no attempt to distinguish; **App.** 2) are cognizable groups for equal protection purposes. **(App.** 6).

The requisite conflict appears to exist between the district court's opinion in this case and the <u>Valle</u> case, a3 well.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing reasons and authorities, this court should accept jurisdiction in this action, based on conflict jurisdiction under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv)(1991).